# Online Banking User Guide





Published by Murphy & Company, Inc. 13610 Barrett Office Drive St. Louis, MO 63021 www.mcompany.com

© 2009-2021 Murphy & Company, Inc. Macintosh is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries. Android is a trademark of Google LLC. Adobe Reader is a registered trademark of Adobe Systems, Inc. © 2012 Portions of this guide were written by Q2 Software, Inc.

#### Disclaimer

Concepts, strategies and procedures outlined in this guide can and do change and may not be applicable to all readers. The content in this guide is not warranted to offer a particular result or benefit. Neither the author, publisher nor any other party associated with this product shall be liable for any damages arising out of the use of this guide, including but not limited to loss of profit, commercial, special, incidental or other damages. For complete product and service information, please refer to the terms, conditions and disclosures for each product and service.

Welcome to Online Banking with State Savings Bank! Whether you are at home or at the office using a mobile phone, tablet or laptop, we strive to make your Online Banking experience easy and convenient.

You can navigate this guide by clicking a topic or feature in the Table of Contents. Each section provides an overview and steps to help you during the Online Banking process. If you have additional questions, contact us at (231) 352-9691.

## **Table of Contents**

### **Getting Started**

New User Enrollment	8
Logging In	10
Logging Off	10
Resetting a Forgotten Password	

## Home Page

Home Page Overview	13
Account Summary Overview	
Account Details Overview	
Quick Transfer	18
Account Nickname	
Account Grouping	20
Editing a Group Name	21
Deleting a Group	

### Security

Protecting Your Information	22
General Guidelines	22
Login ID and Password	22
Fraud Prevention	22
Security Preferences	23
Change Password	23
Change Login ID	24
Secure Delivery	25
Mobile Security Preferences	26
Enabling Touch ID or Fingerprint Login	26
Enabling Passcode Authentication	28
Enabling Face ID	29
Disabling Passcode Authentication, Touch ID, Fingerprint or Facial ID Login	30
Apple® Watch	31
Apple® Watch Setup	31
Viewing Balances and Transactions	31
Alerts Overview	32
Account Alerts	33
History Alerts	34
Online Transaction Alerts	35
Reminders	36
Security Alerts Overview	37
Editing Delivery Preferences	37

Enabling and Disabling Push Notifications	38
Secure Message Overview	
Sending a Secure Message	

## Transaction Types

oving Money Overview41
------------------------

### Transactions

Funds Transfer	43
Customer to Customer Transfer	45
Linking Someone's SSB Account	45
Single Transfers Between SSB Accounts	46
PayPeople Initial Setup	47
PayPeople	49
PayPeople History Overview	
Repeating a PayPeople Transaction	52
Receiving Funds with PayPeople	
Manage Cards Overview	
Adding a Personal External Account	
Verifying a Personal External Account	56
Activity Center Overview	
Using Filters	
Creating or Deleting Custom Views Using Favorites	
Editing Transactions	
Canceling Transactions	

## Quick Bill Pay

61
61
63
64
65
66
67
68
69

## Full Bill Pay

Payments Overview	70
Creating a Payee Overview	71
Creating a Payee	72
Editing a Payee	74

Deactivating or Deleting a Payee	75
Scheduling a Single Payment	
Scheduling Multiple Payments	77
Setting Up Auto-Pay	
Editing a Payment	
Deleting a Payment	
Setting Up eBills	
Canceling eBills	82
Setting Up Reminders	83
Editing a Reminder	
Alerts	
Creating a Report	86
Editing a Report	
Deleting a Report	
Editing a Funding Account	
Creating a Category	
Changing a Category Name	
Deleting a Category	
Contacting Client Services	

### **Financial Tools**

Initial Setup	94
Linking an Account	
Unlinking an Account	95
Categorizing Transactions	96
Splitting a Transaction	
Online Banking Home Page	
Net Worth Overview	
Budgets Overview	
Auto-generated Budgets	
Budgets From Scratch	
Editing or Deleting a Budget	
Managing Budgets	
Spending Overview	
Spending: Recategorizing a Transaction	
Trends Overview	
Debts Overview	

### Services

Stop Payment Request	109
Single Check	
Multiple Checks	
Check Reorder	
Mobile Deposit Enrollment	
Mobile Deposits	
Quick Balance	
To Enable Quick Balance	
To Use Quick Balance	

### Settings

Account Preferences	. 117
Text Enrollment	. 118
Statement Delivery	. 120
Accessibility	. 121

### New User Enrollment

If you're new to Online Banking with SSB, you need to complete the enrollment process the first time you log in. Once you complete these few quick steps, you'll be on your way to banking everywhere you go!

- **1.** Type ssbankmi.com into your browser, and click the "Sign Up" link.
- **2.** Click the "Sign up for Online Banking access for your personal (non-business) accounts" link.
- **3.** Fill out the Online Banking Enrollment Form with the required information, and click the **Submit Enrollment** button.

<u>_</u>	
$\equiv$	
$- \mathbf{v}$	

**Note**: The details you provide are verified by comparing them to your contact information in our system. If the information does not match, call us at (231) 352-9691 to update your profile.

- **4.** A confirmation message appears. You are given a temporary password to use during your first-time login. Memorize the password, and click the "Click Here" link to be redirected to the SSB Home page.
- 5. Enter your new login ID and click the Log In button.
- 6. Choose the contact method that allows SSB to reach you immediately with a Secure Access Code (SAC). This numbered code is only valid for a short time, and you will need to request a new one if it expires. If you close your browser before receiving the SAC, you can log in again and select the I already have a Secure Access Code button.
- 7. Enter the SAC and click the **Submit** button.
- **8.** Choose whether to register your device for future logins. If you click the **Register Device** button, you will never need to request an SAC from that device.



**Note**: For additional security, we strongly suggest you do not register your devices. Not registering requires you to use an SAC, each time you log in.

- **9.** Review the Online Banking Services Agreement on the Disclaimers page, and click the **I Accept** button to agree to the terms and conditions.
- **10.** A profile page appears. Review the information and click the **Submit** button.
- **11.** Change your password by using your old temporary password.
- **12.** Congratulations! You have successfully logged in to Online Banking! If you have any questions or concerns, call us at (231) 352-9691.

## Logging In

After your first-time enrollment, logging in is easy and only requires your login ID and password. If you are logging in on a device you have not previously registered, you need to request an SAC.

<b>STATE</b>	Savin	GS BAI	NK		NLINE BANKING Si r Username Ente	ign Up ► Forgot		-2
ONLINE & MOBILE	PERSONAL	BUSINESS	U LOANS	INVESTMENTS	RESOURCES	ABOUT	Q,	

- **1.** Enter your username and password.
- 2. Click the Login button.



**Note**: If you enter an incorrect password too many times, your account will be temporarily locked. Call us at (231) 352-9691 for assistance.

#### Logging Off

For your security, you should always log off when you finish your Online Banking session. We may also log you off due to inactivity.

1. Click the **Log Off** tab in the navigation menu.

🕞 🛛 Log Off

**2.** Close your internet browser.

### **Resetting a Forgotten Password**

If you happen to forget your password, you can easily reestablish a new one from the SSB Home page—no need to call us!

BONLINE BANKI	KING Sign Up Forgot Password -
Enter Username	Enter Password LOGIN
Please submit y	t your user name to reset your password.
Username	1

- **1.** Click the "Forgot Password" link.
- 2. Enter your login ID and click the **Submit** button.



**Note**: You may not be able to change your password if your account is locked or if you are resetting your password from an unregistered device.



cure Access Code
Back Submit

Please set your new password:	
New Password	
Confirm New Password	-6
Submit	

- **3.** Choose the contact method that allows SSB to reach you immediately with a six-digit SAC.
- **4.** Enter the SAC and click the **Submit** button.
- **5.** Create a new password based on our password requirements, and click the **Submit** button when you are finished.

[≡

### Home Page Overview

After logging in, you are taken directly to the Home page. This page is divided into three convenient sections to help you navigate to every feature within Online Banking. Here you can view the balances in both your linked and SSB accounts, see your account summaries and more!



**Note**: The letters correspond to several available features on the Home page.

- **A.** The navigation bar appears in every view on the left side of the screen. You can navigate to Online Banking features by selecting the appropriate drop-down tab.
- **B.** Your SSB accounts and linked external accounts are displayed in an account card with its balance.
- **C.** If you click an account name, you are taken to the Account Details page. You can also click the ‡ icon on the right side of an account card, and select View Activity for more details.
- **D.** The 🗇 icon allows you to print a summary of current available funds in your accounts.
- **E.** You can expand or collapse account details by clicking the  $\land$  icon.
- **F.** If you click and hold an account card, you can drag and drop it to a new location to change the order your accounts appear.
- **G.** The Quick Actions links in the top right corner let you quickly access different Online Banking features.

#### **Account Summary Overview**

If you ever need to quickly assess how much money is in all of your accounts, you can scroll down to Account Summary on the Home page. This interactive chart represents your total assets, represented by specific colors and percentages.



- **A.** The Total Assets widget gives you the total amount of money in your accounts and breaks down those funds into percentages.
- **B.** Each colored piece represents one of your SSB or linked accounts and displays its percentage of total funds and its balance.
- **C.** Clicking "Next" or "Previous" lets you view different accounts and details.
- **D.** You can click the "View Transactions" link for more information.

### Account Details Overview

Selecting a SSB account on the Home page takes you to the Account Details page, where you can view every transaction pertaining to that account. From here, you can view details such as type of transaction, check images and account balances, so you stay organized and on top of your finances.

	REGULAR SAVINGS XXXX Current Balance Available Balance	\$43,270.48 \$43,270.48	SAVINGS XXXX Current Balance Available Balance	<b>\$118,547.75</b> \$18,547.75	
← Back to Hom	le				
FREE CH	ECKING **9333		ß		10.66
Last Updated: O	tober 4, 2021 11:51 AM			Current Balance Availa	ble Bala
Transaction	s Details & Settings			GDB	F) (
					J (
Q Search tran	sactions				
Date	Description -			Amount	
OCT 16 2020	CLOSE 2801 TEST-TSF TO 933	3 TEST/MV	D	<b>\$10.</b> 3 \$10.	
FEB 13 0	□ cover test od			<b>\$8.0</b> \$0.1	
JAN 31 2020	PRIORITY 3 CHECK Number:	3293		(\$20.0) (\$7.6	
Details					
Description: PRIORITY 3 C	HECK Number: 3293		NAME_SSBTEST		
Date: 1/31/2020			ACCOUNT NO	- <u>1'31 2020</u>	
Type: Debit - Check	2202		twenty dollars and "	\$ 2000	-
Debit - Check	5295		State Savings Bank	Mung	
			A second se	The State of the S	i-anne

- **A.** On the Home page, you can click on an account name to view the Account Details screen.
- **B.** The current and available balances of that account are displayed in the top right corner.
- **C.** The  $\mathcal{P}$  icon opens the search bar to find transactions with that account.
- **D.** Transactions can be sorted by time, type, amount or check number. Click the  $\nabla$  icon for more options.
- **E.** Make a quick transfer by clicking the \$₽ icon. (See page 18 for additional details.)
- **F.** Export your transactions into a different format by clicking the  $\angle$  icon.
- **G.** The icon lets you send a secure message about that account or print a list of transactions.
- **H.** The  $\checkmark$  icon indicates how the Date, Description and Amount columns are sorted.
- I. You can view more details about a transaction by clicking on it.
- J. The icon lets you send a secure message about that transaction or print details about it.

## **Quick Transfer**

No need to run to a branch to move money from one account to another. If you're ever in a rush, the Quick Transfer option is a simple and fast way to make transactions.

REGULAR SAVINGS XXXX Current Balance Available Balance	<b>1</b> . <b>\$43,270.48</b> \$43,270.48	View Activity Quick Transfer Nickname Account
P		Move to
Quick Transfer		Settings
FREE CHECKING ******9333 \$10.66	$\sim$	L
Amount	~	
3	0.00	
4 (Transfer Date 10/04/2021		
5 Advanced Options Tran	Isfer Funds	6

- 1. Click the icon on the right side of an account card and select Quick Transfer.
- 2. Select the "To" drop-down and choose an account to receive the funds.
- **3.** Enter an amount to transfer.
- **4.** Select a transfer date.
- **5.** (Optional) Click the **Advanced Options** button to be redirected to the Funds Transfer feature.
- 6. Click the **Transfer Funds** button when you are finished.

### Account Nickname

Change an account's nickname directly from the Home page.

		View Activity
REGULAR SAVINGS XXXX		Quick Transfer
Current Balance Available Balance	<b>\$43,270.48</b> \$43,270.48	Nickname Account
		Move to
Nicknames	×	Settings
The global nickname changes the account name for all their own nickname set for this account. Your personal account is only visible to you.		
Account Name FREE CHECKING	Account Number ******9333	
Available Balance \$10.66	Current Balance \$10.66	
Global Nickname		
Personal Nickname		2
Cancel	Save	3

- 1. Click the icon on the right side of an account card and select Nickname Account.
- **2.** Enter a new account nickname. The global nickname changes the account name for all users who don't have their own nickname set for this account. Your personal nickname for this account is only visible to you.
- **3.** Click the **Save** button when you are finished.

## Account Grouping

You can organize your internal and linked accounts into groups, so the Home page appears in a way that makes sense to you. These groups can always be changed or deleted to meet your needs.



- 1. Create a new group by clicking the icon and selecting "Create new group."
- 2. Use the drop-down to select an account.
- **3.** Enter the group name.
- **4.** Click the Save button.

#### **Editing a Group Name**

The names of existing groups can be edited in just two easy steps.



- 1. Click icon and selecting "Edit group name."
- **2.** Enter a new name and click the check mark when you are finished.

#### **Deleting a Group**

After a group is made, you can reorganize the Home page by deleting a group without removing those accounts from the Home page.



- 1. Remove all accounts from a group by clicking and holding an account tile and dragging it to another group and dropping it.
- 2. Click the Yes, delete button to delete the group.

## Security

## **Protecting Your Information**

Here at SSB, we do everything we can to protect your personal information and provide you with a dependable online experience. However, we rely on you to take further precautions to assure the safety of your accounts. By following our tips, Online Banking can be a secure and efficient method for all your banking needs.

#### **General Guidelines**

- Make sure your operating system and antivirus software are up to date.
- Always use secure wireless (WiFi) networks that require a login ID and password.
- Never leave your computer unattended while using Online Banking.
- Monitor your recent account history for unauthorized transactions.
- Always log off Online Banking when you're finished and close the browser.

#### Login ID and Password

- Create strong passwords by using a mixture of uppercase and lowercase letters, numbers and special characters.
- Do not create passwords containing your initials or birthday.
- Change your passwords periodically.
- Memorize your passwords instead of writing them down.
- Only register personal devices, and avoid using features that save your login IDs and passwords.

#### **Fraud Prevention**

- Do not open email attachments or click on links from unsolicited sources.
- Avoid giving out personal information on the phone or through email.
- Shred unwanted sensitive documents including receipts, checks, deposit slips, pre-approved credit card offers and expired cards.
- Act quickly. If you suspect your financial information is compromised, call us immediately at (231) 352-9691.

## Security

### **Security Preferences**

We take security very seriously at SSB. So we have added various tools to help you better protect your account information. You can add and manage these features in Security Preferences to strengthen your Online Banking experience.

Security Preferences			
Change Password		Change Login ID	>
Secure Delivery	>		

#### **Change Password**

You can change your Online Banking password whenever you want to. We recommend changing your password regularly and following our guidelines to

create a strong password.

	Change Password
2	Current Password
3	New Password
4	Confirm New Password
5	Change Password

In the Settings tab, click Security Preferences.

- 1. Click the Change Password button.
- **2.** Enter your current password.
- **3.** Create a new password.
- **4.** Reenter your new password.
- 5. Click the Change Password button when you are finished making changes.

#### Change Login ID

You can also change your login ID at any time. Create a unique login ID you will remember and follow our required guidelines.

	Change Login ID
2	New Login ID
3	Save new Login ID

In the Settings tab, click Security Preferences.

- 1. Click the Change Login ID button.
- 2. Enter your new login ID.
- 3. Click the Save new Login ID button when you are finished making changes.

#### **Secure Delivery**

We can verify your identify by sending an SAC to you by text message or voice call. Within Security Preferences, you can make changes to your delivery preferences or add new ways we can contact you.

< Back to Security Pr	eferences		
Secure Del	ivery Contact Information		
	Enter your preferred email and/or phone contact information below. This contact info used for Secure Access Code delivery.	rmation	will be
	SMS Text Number	Ø	
	Voice Number	Ø	
	SMS Text Number	Ø	Ŵ
	Voice Number	Ø	Ŵ
	Voice Number	Ø	Ŵ
	New Text Number New Voice Number	r	4
Voice N	umber	×	3

In the Settings tab, click Security Preferences.

- 1. Click the Secure Delivery button.
- 2. Make changes to a secure delivery method by clicking the  $\swarrow$  icon to make changes, or the  $\hat{m}$  icon to delete a secure delivery method.
- **3.** Enter your new contact information and click the  $\checkmark$  icon when you are finished to save your changes.
- **4.** Add a new delivery contact by clicking either the **New Text Number** or **New Voice Number** button at the bottom of the page.

## Security

## **Mobile Security Preferences**

Within SSB's Mobile Banking app, you have the ability to set up security preferences that are not available on a desktop computer. These additional preferences make signing into your Mobile Banking quick and easy, but also add an extra layer of security to your private information while you are on the go!

#### **Enabling Touch ID or Fingerprint Login**

Touch ID and Fingerprint Login use fingerprint recognition technology, allowing you to perform tasks on your Apple<sup>®</sup> or Android<sup>™</sup> device with just your fingerprint. With this feature enabled, you can quickly and securely access your accounts using our mobile app!

#### **Apple**<sup>®</sup>

Menu Security Preferen	What Is This Feature?	Login ID
Change Password	This feature lets you validate your Mobile Banking session using your fingerprint instead of a login ID and password.	Password
Change Login ID > Secure Delivery >	With this feature enabled, you will be prompted to place your registered fingerprint on the fingerprint scanner to login.	Authorize
Passcode Off Touch ID 1 0 1	Feature Enablement Fingerprint authentication is only available for users with a fingerprint scanner enabled device.	3
	In the event that you choose to disable the feature on your mobile device, your account will revert back to requiring a login ID and password.	
	Continue	-2

Sign in to SSB's Mobile Banking app and tap the **Menu** button. In the **Settings** tab, tap **Security Preferences**.

- 1. Toggle the Touch ID or Fingerprint Login switch from "Off" to "On."
- **2.** Review the information about using fingerprint authentication and tap the **Continue** button.
- 3. Enter your login ID and password, and tap the Authorize button.



**Note**: You must have Touch ID or Fingerprint Login enabled on your mobile device before enabling it through our Mobile Banking app.



- **4.** Scan your fingerprint.
  - a. Apple® Device: Place your finger on the Home button to enable Touch ID.
  - **b.** Android<sup>™</sup> Device: Place your finger on the fingerprint scanner to enable Fingerprint Login. Location of scanner varies from device to device.

#### **Enabling Passcode Authentication**

Create a unique passcode within our Mobile Banking app to quickly and easily sign in and access your funds while on the go!



Sign in to SSB's Mobile Banking app and tap the **Menu** button. In the **Settings** tab, tap **Security Preferences**.

- 1. Toggle the Passcode switch from "Off" to "On."
- Review the information about using a passcode and tap the Create Passcode button.
- **3.** Create your four-digit passcode using the keypad.
- **4.** Confirm your passcode using the keypad.
- 5. Enter your login ID and password, and tap the Authorize button.

#### **Enabling Face ID**

Face ID is a feature which utilizes facial recognition technology, allowing you to unlock your Apple® device with your face instead of a login ID and password.

Face ID X	Face ID $ imes$
What is this feature?	Enter your login ID and password to confirm activa
This feature lets you validate your Mobile Banking session using your face instead of a login ID and password. With this feature enabled, you will be prompted to scan your face with the camera to login.	Login ID Password
Feature Enablement	
Face authentication is only available for users with a Face ID enabled device. In the event that you choose to disable the feature on your mobile device, your account will revert back to requiring a login ID and password.	Cancel Authorize
Cancel Enroll Now	Password Remember me Forgot your password?
	Log In Face ID Passcode

Open SSB's Mobile Banking app and tap the **Face ID** button.

- 1. Review the information about using Face ID and tap the **Enroll Now** button.
- 2. Enter your login ID and password, and tap the **Authorize** button.
- 3. Face ID is now set up. You can now tap the Face ID button to log in.

Ē	Note: You must have Face ID enabled on your mobile device before
	enabling it through our Mobile Banking app.

## Disabling Passcode Authentication, Touch ID, Fingerprint or Facial ID Login

You can disable Passcode Authentication, Fingerprint or Facial Recognition Login if you no longer prefer to utilize them. When all features are disabled, you can sign in to your Online Banking using your user ID and password.

	Security Preferences	
	Change Password	
	Change User ID >	
	Secure Access Code Delivery	
	Passcode Off	
Apple <sup>®</sup>	Face / Touch ID	
	T	
Android™	Fingerprint Login Off	
		2
(i)	x (j) x	Turn off Fingerprint Login
Turn off Passcode	Turn off Touch ID	nge Password 🧊 🤉
Authentication	This will disable Touch ID. Are you sure you want to do this?	nge Login ID 'his will disable Fingerprint Login. Are you sure The Delivery you want to do this?
This will disable passcode authentication. An you sure you want to do this?	Pas	scode Cancel Yes
Yes	Yes	erprint Login Pr
L		
	2	

Sign in to SSB's Mobile Banking app and tap the **Menu** button. In the **Settings** tab, tap **Security Preferences**.

- Toggle the Passcode, Face/Touch ID or Fingerprint Login switch from "On" to "Off."
- 2. Tap the **Yes** button to disable the feature.

## Security

## Apple® Watch

With the convenience of the Apple® Watch feature, you can now check your balances and recent transactions faster than ever.

#### Apple® Watch Setup

Activate the Apple® Watch feature in your mobile banking app using your mobile device or tablet.



Sign in to SSB's Mobile Banking app and tap the **Menu** button. In the **Settings** tab, tap **Apple® Watch**.

1. Toggle the Apple® Watch switch from "Off" to "On."

#### **Viewing Balances and Transactions**

When you activate the Apple® Watch feature, you can view your first ten accounts on the Account Summary page, balances and transactions with a few taps.



- 1. Swipe left and right to view different account balances.
- 2. Swipe up and down to scroll through the transactions list.
- **3.** Tap the **Back** button to return to your account list.

## Security

### **Alerts Overview**

Having peace of mind is critical when it comes to your Online Banking experience. When you create an alert through Online Banking, you specify the conditions that trigger that alert, so you stay on top of what's important to you.

Alerts	A + New Alert
	Account Alert History Alert Online Transaction Alert Reminder
ACCOUNT ALERTS (1) When my Available Balance is less than \$200.00, send me an SMS text message (555555555).	
	G

In the Settings tab, click Alerts.

- **A.** The "New Alert" drop-down lets you create an account, history, online transaction or reminder alert.
- **B.** The  $\land$  icon allows you to collapse or expand alert details for each category.
- **C.** Toggling the switch turns an alert on or off without deleting it.
- **D.** The "Edit" link lets you make changes to existing alerts.

**Note**: All alerts are automatically sent through secure messages, but you can also choose to receive them by text message, voice call, or email.

#### **Account Alerts**

There should be no surprises when it comes to your finances. Account Alerts can notify you when the balances in your accounts go below or above a set amount.

Account Alert	New Account Alert	
History Alert	Account	
Online Transaction Alert	FREE CHECKING *****9333 \$10.66	2
Reminder	Account balance type	3
	Amount	
	More Than Less Than Exactly	
	(s	0.00-5
	Alert Delivery Method	
	Email	$\sim$
	Email Address	
	Go back Create Alert	7

- 1. Use the "New Alert" drop-down and select "Account Alert."
- **2.** Use the drop-down to select an account.
- **3.** Choose an account balance type.
- **4.** Select a comparison.
- 5. Enter an amount.
- **6.** Select a delivery method and enter the corresponding information.
- 7. Click the **Create Alert** button when you are finished.

#### **History Alerts**

If you're ever concerned about amount limits or pending checks, you can create History Alerts to contact you when a check number posts or transactions meet a chosen amount.

Account Alert	New History Alert
History Alert	Transaction Type
Online Transaction Alert	Debit Transaction Credit Transaction Check Number Description 2
Reminder	Amount More Than Less Than Exactly
1	\$ 0.00 4
	fccount 5
	Alert Delivery Method
	Email Address
	Email Address
	Go back Create Alert

- 1. Click the "New Alert" drop-down and select "History Alert."
- **2.** Select a transaction type.
- **3.** Select a comparison. These options vary depending on the chosen transaction type.
- 4. Enter an amount.
- **5.** Use the drop-down to select an account.
- **6.** Select a delivery method and enter the corresponding information.
- 7. Click the **Create Alert** button when you are finished.

#### **Online Transaction Alerts**

Different types of transactions can occur in your accounts. By creating Online Transaction Alerts, you can be notified when various transfers, payments or debits post to your account.

Account Alert	New Online Transaction Alert	
History Alert	fransaction	
Online Transaction Alert	External Transfer	
Reminder	Account	3
1	Status	4
	Alert Delivery Method	$\leq$
	Email	
	Email Address	
	Go back Create Alert	_6

- 1. Click the "New Alert" drop-down and select "Online Transaction Alert."
- **2.** Use the drop-down to select a transaction type.
- **3.** Use the drop-down to select an account.
- **4.** Use the drop-down to select a status.
- **5.** Select a delivery method and enter the corresponding information.
- 6. Click the **Create Alert** button when you are finished.

#### Reminders

Just like marking a calendar, you can set up alerts to remind you of specific dates or events. Keep track of important dates, so you will never forget a birthday or anniversary again!

Account Alert	New Reminder	
History Alert	Event	
Online Transaction Alert		2
Reminder	select a date	<b>3</b>
1	Recurs Every Year - 4	
	Alert Delivery Method	
	Email Address	6
	Go back Create Alert	

- 1. Use the "New Alert" drop-down and select "Reminder."
- **2.** Use the drop-down to select an event.
- **3.** Enter the date for the alert to occur.
- **4.** Check the box next to "Recurs Every Year" to have your alert repeat annually.
- 5. Enter a message.
- **6.** Select a delivery method and enter the corresponding information.
- 7. Click the **Create Alert** button when you are finished.
## Security Alerts Overview

We want you to feel confident while using Online Banking. To help you feel safe and in control, Security Alerts are implemented in your accounts to notify you immediately when security scenarios occur.

Edit Delivery Preferences	
Nert me when an address is changed.	
Nert me when an outgoing ACH transaction is created.	8
Delivery Preferences	
EMAIL ADDRESS	8
Email Address	ά. Ω
PHONE NUMBER	
Country	0
United States	
Area Code Phone Number	
SMS TEXT NUMBER Message and data notes may apply. Expert 1 message/tarmaction.	
Country	
United States V	
Area Code Phone Number	
Aryve To Terms	

In the Settings tab, click Alerts, then Security Alerts.

A. Toggling the switch turns an alert on or off without deleting it.

### **Editing Delivery Preferences**

When a trigger occurs, Security Alerts are always sent to you through secure messages. You can add additional delivery methods to notify you about your accounts wherever you are.

In the Settings tab, click Alerts, then Security Alerts.

- **1.** Click the "Edit Delivery Preferences" link at the top. These changes will apply to all Security Alerts.
- **2.** Enter the information for your preferred delivery method.
- **3.** Click the **Save** button when you are finished making changes.

## **Enabling and Disabling Push Notifications**

Have alerts sent directly to your mobile device as push notifications. Push notifications are completely free to receive and will show up as a banner at the top of your lock screen or in your "notification tray."



- **A.** When you first sign into SSB's online banking app you have the option to enable push notifications for alerts by tapping the **Allow** button.
- **B.** To enable or disable push notifications at a later time, in the **Alerts** tab, tap **Push Notifications**.
  - **1.** Use the **Enable Notifications** switch to enable or disable push notifications.
  - Tap the respective Alert Settings tab to edit alerts and their delivery preferences. (See Alerts Overview section starting on page 32 for more information.)

## Secure Message Overview

If you have questions about your accounts or need to speak with someone at SSB, Secure Messages allow you to communicate directly with a SSB customer service representative. From the Secure Messages page, you can find replies, old messages or create new conversations.



#### Click the **Messages** tab.

- **A.** Click on a message to open it. Messages are displayed on the left side of the screen.
- **B.** Messages automatically delete after a certain time. Check the box next to "This message should never expire" to prevent that message from being erased.
- **C.** Delete an opened message by clicking the  $\boxed{100}$  icon or reply by clicking the  $\swarrow$  icon.
- **D.** You can delete multiple messages at once.
  - **1.** Click the "Delete multiple" link.
  - 2. Check the box next to the corresponding messages or check the box next to "Select All."
  - **3.** Click the "Delete" link and then the **Delete** button to permanently delete the selected messages.

## Sending a Secure Message

Starting a new conversation through Online Banking is just as effortless as sending an email. Unlike an email, you can safely include confidential information relating to your accounts or attach files within a new message.



#### Click the **Messages** tab.

- 1. Create a new message by clicking the 🕢 icon in the top right corner.
- 2. Select the recipient from the drop-down.
- 3. Enter the subject.
- 4. Enter your message.
- 5. Click the Send message button when you are finished.

# **Transaction Types**

### Moving Money Overview

Online Banking gives you the ability to transfer funds on the go. Whether you are transferring money between your accounts or sending money to someone outside of SSB, there are various features that help you transfer funds in different ways.

#### • Funds Transfer:

Move money between your personal SSB accounts.

Funds Transfer	
From Account	~

#### • Customer to Customer Transfer:

Move money to someone's SSB accounts.

CUSTOMER TO CUSTOMER TRANSFER		
You can choose to make a single transfer to another State Savings Bank account holder or link a (for deposit purposes only) to your online login. If you plan to make more than one transfer to to need to create a recurring or future-dated transfer, linking the account is required.		
	Single Transfer	Link Account

• External Transfer after adding and verifying external accounts: Move money after linking your external accounts.

this form will enable you to request that an external account (an account you have at another financial institution) be linked for electronic transfers     there are two steps in this process:         Step 1: Advocanceunt         Step 2: Verify Your Account         Verify External Account         Verify External Account         Rease choose an account to verify using the amounts that were deposited to your account.         Account Number Account Type Status
Step 1: Add Your Account     Step 2: Verify Your Account Verify External Account Please choose an account to verify using the amounts that were deposited to your account.
Step 2: Verify Your Account Verify External Account Please choose an account to verify using the amounts that were deposited to your account.
Please choose an account to verify using the amounts that were deposited to your account.
123456789 Checking Funds have not been sent to the target account yet. This request can not be selected.

#### • PayPeople:

Electronically move money to a SSB customer or non-customer.

RECIPIENT NAME	EMAIL OR MOBILE #

#### • Bill Pay:

Move money to someone's external account or a company's account.

	Multi Pay	Single Pay		
٩	Search payees		+ Add payee	Options <del>-</del>

## **Funds Transfer**

Use the Funds Transfer feature when you need make a one-time or recurring transfer between your personal Murphy accounts. These transactions go through automatically, so your money is always where you need it to be.

From Account		
To Account		
		~
Amount		
\$		0.0
Frequency		
One time transfer		Ň
Transfer Date		
04/28/2020		đ.
Memo (optional)		
Enter letters and numbers only		

In the Transactions tab, click Funds Transfer.

- **1.** Select the accounts to transfer funds between using the "From" and "To" drop-downs.
- **2.** Enter the amount to transfer.
- 3. (One-Time Transfer Only) Enter the date to process the transaction.

Start Date	
04/28/2020	Ē
<ol> <li>Transfers falling on a Sunday or banking holidaday.</li> <li>Repeat Duration         <ul> <li>Forever (Until I Cancel)</li> <li>Until Date (Set An End Date)</li> </ul> </li> </ol>	y will be processed the following business
Memo (optional)	
Enter letters and numbers only	
Transfer Fu	inde

- **4.** If you would like to set up a recurring transfer, follow the steps below.
  - **a.** Use the drop-down to select a frequency.
  - **b.** Enter a start date for this transaction using the calendar features.
  - **c.** Decide if the transfer will repeat forever or have an end date.
- **5.** (Optional) Enter a memo.
- 6. Click the **Transfer Funds** button when you are finished.

**Note**: You can view or cancel unprocessed transactions by accessing the **Recurring Transactions** tab within the Activity Center.

### **Customer to Customer Transfer**

If you have a friend or relative that also banks through SSB, Customer to Customer Transfers allow you to send them money immediately. You can send electronic payments and link accounts for future deposits using their email address and the last four digits of their account.

### Linking Someone's SSB Account

Instead of typing in someone's information every time you send them money, you can conveniently link their account for future deposits.

(for deposit purposes only) to your or	sfer to another State Savings Bank account holder or link another State Savings Bank account holder's account line login. If you plan to make more than one transfer to the other State Savings Bank account holder, or if you ated transfer, linking the account is required.
	Single Transfer
Link An Account	
Link another customer's account (depos	it only) to your online login. Enter Recipient Customer Account Information. This data is to link a target ider the Transaction tab.
account to be used in Funds Transfer un ACCOUNT TYPE *	
Link another customer's account (depos account to be used in Funds Transfer un ACCOUNT TYPE * Checking	Ider the Transaction tab.
Link another customer's account (depos account to be used in Funds Transfer un ACCOUNT TYPE *	

In the Transactions tab, click Customer to Customer Transfer.

- 1. Click the Link Account button.
- **2.** Select an account type from the "Account Type" drop-down.
- **3.** Enter the recipient's email address.
- **4.** Enter the last four digits of the recipient's account number.
- 5. Click **Submit** when you are finished.

**Note**: To review or cancel a Customer to Customer Transfer, visit the Activity Center.

### Single Transfers Between SSB Accounts

If you only need to send money to someone once, you can generate a single transaction using their email address and partial account number.

Transfer Funds To Another Account	
Make a one-time transfer to another customer's account.	
Enter Your Account Information	
FROM ACCOUNT *	
XXXX2431: \$7789.19	Ŷ
COLOR	
Enter Recipient Customer Account Information	
ACCOUNT TYPE *	
Checking	<u> </u>
ECIPIENT EMAIL ADDRESS *	

In the Transactions tab, click Customer to Customer Transfer.

- 1. Click the Single Transfer button.
- 2. Select the account to take funds from using the "From Account" drop-down.
- **3.** Enter an amount.
- **4.** (Optional) Write a description of your transfer.
- **5.** Select the recipient's account type using the "Account Type" drop-down.
- **6.** Enter the recipient's email address.
- 7. Enter the last four digits of the recipient's account number.
- 8. Click Submit when you are finished.

## PayPeople Initial Setup

Send money to family and friends anywhere! Person-to-person payments are a digital cash alternative that make sending and receiving money as easy as emailing and texting. Whether it's paying allowance, splitting the check or sending a birthday gift, person-to-person payments allow you to quickly transfer money from your existing debit account to almost anyone.

Fast: Initiate a payment from your desktop computer or mobile device.

Secure: Every transaction requires your debit card PIN, making it as safe as any debit transaction.



In the Transactions tab, click PayPeople.

- 1. Click the Send Money button on initial setup.
- 2. Review the Terms & Conditions.



	Ve	rify Debit Card
	Debit Card Number	Please verify your [ Total Access ] issued debit card  Expiration Date Month  Year
6	Nickname (optional)	Continue 6

- 3. Click the Agree button.
- **4.** Enter your debit card number and expiration date to verify your card information.
- **5.** (Optional) Enter a nickname for your debit card.
- 6. Click the **Continue** button.

## PayPeople

Your debit card allows you to make all your payments without cash or checks, and now it can be used to make transfers! Using your bank-issued debit card and PIN number, you can send money to any SSB customer or non-customer using only their name and contact information.

	Send	History	Manage Cards			
0	Recipient Name			Email or Mobile #	ŧ	2
3-	Amount			0.00 Debit Card		
6	Memo				+ Ac	dd a card
					Reset	ntinue 6

#### In the Transactions tab, click PayPeople.

- **1.** Enter the recipient's name. As you enter characters, suggested recipients appear if the characters match the names of any previous recipients.
- **2.** Enter the email or mobile number of the person whom you are sending funds.
- **3.** Enter the amount of the transaction.
- **4.** Select a debit card from which you are sending funds. If you need to add a new debit card, click the "+ Add a card" link.
- **5.** (Optional) Enter a memo or brief text to describe why you are sending funds.
- 6. Click the **Continue** button.

두	

**Note**: Memos can be up to 40 characters long. However, if you send funds via text message, some characters may be not appear properly.

Review	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	nber: XXXX XXXX X er PIN to verify transa	Contraction and the second
<u>_!</u>			— ]
Recipient: Bertrand Amount: \$15.00	7	2	0
Debit Card: XXXX XXXX XXXX Memo: Congratulations	4	8	1
Edit Continue 7	3	9	6
	5	CLEAR	$\otimes$

- **7.** Review your transaction and click the **Continue** button.
- **8.** Enter your PIN.

Ē

**Note**: The PIN pad scrambles digits each time you click or tap a digit. This feature is designed to keep the transaction secure in case your computer or mobile device is infected with viruses or malware that tracks keystrokes.

• The transaction will be canceled if two consecutive unsuccessful PIN entries occur.

### **PayPeople History Overview**

You can view all your transactions on the History page, so you can clearly keep track of who you have sent money to!

Sei	nd Money A Send History Manage Ca	rds			
٩	Search transactions			Reset Search	-B
0	Date * Recipient *	Email/Phone# *	Amount *	Status *	
^	12/13/2016 test	Saferine@rccingary.com	\$0.50	Canceled	
	Recipient: Debit Card: XXXX XXXX XXXX Memo:	<b>Sent:</b> \$0.50			
			Repeat	this transaction	
$\sim$	11/09/2016 test	(014)-479-4075	\$1.00	Canceled	

In the Transactions tab, click PayPeople.

- A. Click the **History** tab.
- **B.** Use the search bar to find transactions within that account and click the **Search** button.
- **C.** Click the ▼ icon next to the appropriate column to sort transactions by Date, Recipient, Email/Phone #, Amount or Status.
- **D.** Click a transfer to view more details.

## Repeating a PayPeople Transaction

If you've previously sent someone money using your debit card, you can duplicate that transaction by first locating it on the History page. We provide you with a simple link so you can effortlessly repeat your transfers!



#### In the Transactions tab, click PayPeople.

- 1. Click the **History** tab.
- Click the transfer you want to repeat and select the "Repeat this transaction []" link.
- 3. Make the needed changes and click the **Continue** button.
- 4. Review the transactions and click the **Continue** button.
- 5. Enter your PIN.

## Receiving Funds with PayPeople

After funds are sent, the recipient receives a text or email message with a link to receive the payment. The timing of the deposit depends on the receiving account. If funds are deposited into an account that belongs to a participating network, funds are immediately available. Otherwise, the recipient is prompted to enter the details for a checking account, and funds will be available in one to three days.

	Receive Money
	You've received a payment of \$50.00 for
	Please enter the following information to collect payment: First Name
	Last Name
J	Debit Card #
	Expiration Date MM - Select VY - Select V
	I accept the terms of service
	3 Deposit Payment

When the recipient clicks the link, the Receive Money page appears in a web browser.

- 1. Enter first name, last name, debit card number and expiration date.
- **2.** Read and accept the Terms of Service by clicking the box next to "I accept the terms of service."
- 3. Click the **Deposit Payment** button to complete the transaction.

### Manage Cards Overview

Within the Manage Cards features, you have the ability to add a card, edit a nickname of an existing card or remove a card you no longer need.

Send	History	Manage Cards		
Add or remove ca	rds. Replacement	cards must be added as i	new.	
Debit Card Numb	ber		Expires	
XXXX XXXX XX	XXX O	-	05/2021	
Nickname:	checking	G		
Review Terms And	Conditions	checking	Cancel Save	Add a card

In the Transactions tab, click PayPeople.

- A. Click the Manage Cards tab.
- **B.** If you need to add a new card to your list, click the **Add a card** button.
- **C.** To edit a card's nickname, click the  $\swarrow$  icon. Make your changes and click the **Save** button when you are finished.
- **D.** To permanently remove a card from your list, click the  $\boxed{|||||}$  icon.

## Adding a Personal External Account

Your private accounts at other financial institutions can be linked to Online Banking with SSB, so you can transfer money between two banks without ever leaving home! When you go to add another account, you are asked to verify your ownership of that account by confirming two small deposits SSB makes into the external account.

This form will e	nable you to request t	hat an external account (an account you have at another financial institution) be linked for electronic trans
	teps in this process:	
	erify Your Account	
account, please ACH transaction	contact your financia ns as not all savings as	your account number located on your check (see the sample check below). If you want to add a savings institution for the routing number that they use for savings deposits. Also verify if your account is digible counts allow for Acit transactions: If you have issues with your micro deposits thowing up in your account, her financial institution as not all financial institutions have one routing number for all account types.
MEMO_	Control of the Control of the Control	56764014 150.
di Annel I	Routing Number	Account Number
To be also service	Your Account	New Jackson and the second transmission and the second
Institution     Your Account     Account Once this inform Two "micro" deg amounts less th them later in st     Please N     If the mic using the	ill need to input the fe n's Routing Number Junt Number Type (checking or savii mation has been enter posits will be generat an \$1. Once you have p 2, the verification p ote: Only domestic (U ro deposits do not ap correct routing numb	ed, click on the Continue button. d and sent to your external account typically within 5 business days). Micro deposits are random deposits received these two micro deposits in your external account, make note of both amounts as you will need rocess. S J bank are allowed. Dear in your account within the specified timeframe, contact the other financial institution to verify that yoe er as some institutions do not use a single number for all account types.
Institution     Your Account     Your Account     Once this inform     Two "micro" deg     amounts less th     them later in st     Please N     If the mic	ill need to input the fe n's Routing Number yount Number Type (checking or savi yope (checking or savi public begenerate no \$10, Once you have ep 2, the verification p lote: Only domestic (U correct routing numb ABER:	ngs) (ed, click on the Continue button. d and semt to your external account (typically within 5 business days). Micro deposits are random deposits received white two micro deposits in your external account, make note of both amounts as you will need rocess. (S) banks are allowed.
Institutio     Institutio     Your Acco     Account  Once this inform Two "micro" deg amounts less th them later in st      Please N     If the mic     using the     CCOUNT NUM      Step 2: Verial	ill need to input the fr fin's Routing Number jount Number Uppe (checking or sawit mation has been enter positis will be generativ an \$11. Once you have ep 2, the verification p dete: Only domestic (L roordepositis do not ap dete: Only domestic (L domestic (L fy Your Account	ngs) red, click on the Cantinue button. dad Sent to your external account typically within 5 business days). Micro deposits are random deposits received lines two micro deposits in your external account, make note of buth amounts as you will need the pair in your account within the specified timeframe, contact the other financial institution to verify that you er as some institutions do not use a single number for all account types.

#### In the Services tab, click Add External Account.

- **1.** Enter the account number.
- 2. Select the type of account using "Account Type" drop-down.
- **3.** Enter the financial institution's routing number. These numbers are located at the bottom of a paper check or deposit slip from your checkbook.
- **4.** Click the **Continue** button.



In two to three business days, two micro-deposits will appear in your external account. Once you receive the deposits, go to the **Verify External Account** tab to add the account.

### Verifying a Personal External Account

As soon as SSB makes two small deposits of less than a dollar into your external account, you are asked to verify those amounts within Online Banking. Once they are confirmed, you can begin transferring money to the external account.

	Account Verification
	Please choose an account to verify using the amounts that were deposited to your account.
1	Account Type: Swings Routing Number: Status: Funds have been sent to the target account
	Verify Deposit Amounts
2	The deposit amounts should be entered in cents (example: \$0.05 should be entered as "05").  Amount #1:  Amount #2:
(	Continue 3

In the Services tab, click Verify External Account.

- **1.** Select the account you would like to verify.
- **2.** Enter the amounts of the two micro-deposits made into your external account.
- 3. Click the **Continue** button when you are finished.

### **Activity Center Overview**

All transactions initiated through Online Banking or through our app appear in the Activity Center. All transactions and deposits appear in the Activity Center.

Single Transactions	Recurring Tra	ansactions		C
Q Search transactions				
Created date 💌	Status 👻	Transaction Type 👻	Account *	Amount 👻 🗌
2/27/2019	Processed	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Savings Account XXXXXX	<b>F</b>
2/27/2019	Drafted	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Checking Account XXXXXX	Toggle Details
2/27/2019	Cancelled	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Savings Account XXXXXX	Сору
Tracking ID:	123456	e	<b>Amount:</b> \$1.00	Print Details
Created:	02/27/2019 11:2	21 AM	Description: Funds Transfe	er via Online
Created By:	John Doe		From Account: Savings Accou	int XXXXX
Authorized:	02/27/2019 11:2	21 AM	To Account: Checking Acco	ount XXXXX

In the Transactions tab, click Activity Center.

- A. Click an appropriate tab to view Single Transactions or Recurring Transactions.
- **B.** Use the search bar to find transactions within that account.
- **C.** Print the Activity Center page by clicking the  $\Box$  icon. Export your transactions into a different format by clicking the  $\downarrow$  icon.
- **D.** Click the **▼** icon next to the Created, Status, Transaction Type, Account or Amount columns to sort transactions.
- E. Click on a transaction to view more details.
- **F.** Click the icon to perform additional functions.

### **Using Filters**

The Activity Center can be customized using various filters. You can also choose up to six columns to display, so you can swiftly find what you're looking for.



In the Transactions tab, click Activity Center.

- **1.** Click the  $\forall$  icon to create a custom view of your transactions.
- 2. Create a custom list of transactions using these filters.
- **3.** Filter the type of transaction you are looking for using the "Transaction Type" drop-down. Column names with check boxes appear. Select up to six boxes.
- **4.** Click the **Apply** button when you are finished.

### **Creating or Deleting Custom Views Using Favorites**

After applying specific filters, you can save that view of the Activity Center to Favorites, making it easier and faster to search, print or export transactions. You can always delete Favorites if they are no longer useful.



#### In the Transactions tab, click Activity Center.

- 1. Click the 🏠 icon.
- 2. Click the "+ Save as New" link to create a new favorite template.
- **3.** Enter a nickname for your new custom view.
- 4. Click the **Save** button when you are finished.
- 5. Click the X icon to remove a custom view from your Favorites.

### **Editing Transactions**

The Activity Center only shows pending transactions initiated within Digital Banking not yet posted to your account. The edit feature is not available for loan payments.



In the Transactions tab, click Activity Center.

- **1.** Browse through your pending transaction and locate the transaction you would like to edit. Create a custom list of transactions using these filters.
- 2. Click the icon and click "Edit."
- **3.** Make the necessary edits and then click the **Transfer Funds** button when you are finished.

<u></u>
Ę١
ν

**Note:** If you edit a recurring transaction in the Single Transaction tab, you will only edit that single occurrence. To edit an entire series, you must visit the **Recurring Transactions** tab in the Activity Center.

### **Canceling Transactions**

The Activity Center shows all pending transactions that have not posted to your account. You can cancel pending transactions up until their process date.

Created date 👻	Status 👻	Transaction Type 👻	Account 👻	Amount 🕢 🗄
//27/2019	Drafted	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Savings Account XXXXXX1234	Approve Selected
//27/2019	Drafted	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Checking Account XX	Cancel Selected
/27/2019	Drafted	Funds Transfer - Tracking ID: 123456	Savings Account XXXXXX1234	\$1.00 E
			×	
		(	!	
		Cancel T	ransactions	
		Are you sure you want	to cancel these transactions?	
		#671	57 (\$0.04)	
		#671	40 (\$0.01)	
			action(s) can not be cancelled.	

In the Transactions tab, click Activity Center.

- 1. Browse through your pending transactions and check the box for each transaction you want to cancel. Check the box between the Amount column and the <u>i</u> icon to select all transactions.
- 2. Click the icon and click "Cancel Selected."
- **3.** Click the **Confirm** button when you are finished. The status then changes to "Canceled" on the Activity Center page.



### **Bill Pay Overview**

Sending payments to companies and individuals has never been easier! Bill Pay with SSB helps you stay on top of your bills, allowing you to quickly manage your payments and never miss a due date.



**Note**: When you click the **Quick Bill Pay** tab, you need to choose an account to use within Bill Pay and to accept the terms and conditions. You cannot remove or delete this account after it is enrolled.

### **Creating a Payee**

Using Bill Pay can save you time with payee profiles for the companies or people you pay regular bills to. Whether it's a one-time payment or a frequent occurrence, managing your payees lets you pay your bills on time in just a few clicks.



In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill Pay.

**1.** Click the "Add Payee" link.

Name		Payee Type	$\sim$
Payee Nickname (optional)			
Address 1			
Address 2 (optional)			
City			
State		ZIP	
Select State	$\sim$		
Confirm Payee Account Number (optional)			
		Cancel	eview
Preview Payee	Name	Cancel	eview
Preview Payee	Name John Doe Payee Nickname	Cancel	eview
Preview Payee	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type	Cancel	eview
Preview Payee	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type Indv Payment Type	Cancel	eview
Preview Payee	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type Indv Payment Type N/A Address	Cancel	eview
	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type Indv Payment Type N/A	Cancel	eview
	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type Indv Payment Type N/A Address 1 Main Street	Cancel	eview
	John Doe Payee Nickname N/A Payee Type Indy Peyment Type N/A Address 1 Main Street Anywhere, KS 55555-5555	Cancel	eview

- 2. Enter the new payee's name and add an optional nickname.
- **3.** Enter the payee's street address, city and zip code and choose the state using the "State" drop-down.
- 4. Enter the payee's area code and phone number.
- 5. (Optional) Enter and confirm the payee's account number.
- 6. Click the **Preview** button when you are finished.
- **7.** Review the payee information and click the **Save Payee** button.Enter the new payee's name and add an optional nickname.

### **Editing a Payee**

You can make changes to an existing payee at any time. This is especially beneficial if a payee's account number or contact information changes.

John D	02		$\mathbb{O}$	Edit payee
				Delete payee
Edit Paye	e			
Name	•		Payee Type	
JOHN DOE			Individual	
Payee Nickname (	optionall		Payment Type (optional)	
John Doe			Check	
Address 1				
1 MAIN STREET				
Address 2 (optional)				
Audiess 2 (optional)				
City				
ANYWHERE				
State			ZIP	
Kansas		$\sim$	55555-5555	
Area Code	Phone			
(555)	555-5555			
*****6789	Int Number (optional)			
	No.			
Confirm Payee Acc	count Number			
				Cancel Previe
	Preview Paye	e		
		Name JOHN DOE		
		Payee Nickname		
		John Doe Payee Type		
4-	4	Indv Payment Type		
		check Address		
		1 MAIN STREET		
	1	ANYWHERE, KS 55555555		
		Phone		
		Phone (555) 555-5555 Payee account number *****6789		

In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill Pay.

- 1. Click the icon on the top right of a payee tile and select "Edit payee."
- **2.** Make the necessary changes.
- **3.** Click the **Preview** button when you are finished making changes.
- **4.** Review the payee information and click the **Save Payee** button.

### **Deleting a Payee**

If you no longer need a payee and wish to remove them from Bill Pay, you can do so from the Bill Payment page.

Delete Payee		
Warning: Please delete all pending transactions for a payee before deleting the payee.		
Payees		
GouidaTest	Delete	_
TEST HOA	Delete	1
test	Delete	
TestingQ2 Payee	Delete	
Chase Credit Card	Delete	
	Go Back	
Payee Delete test		
e delete all pending transactions for the before deleting the payee.		
Are you sure you want to permanently delete this payee?		
Close Delete 2		

In the **Transactions** tab, click **Quick Bill Pay**. Then click the **Options** button and select "Delete a Payee."

- 1. Click the **Delete** button next to the payee you want to remove.
- 2. Click the **Delete** button to confirm.

### **Changing "Pay From" Accounts**

You can change which accounts are your default "Pay From" accounts.



In the **Transactions** tab, click **Quick Bill Pay**. Then click the **Options** button and select "Edit Pay from accounts."

- **1.** Select which accounts you wish to pay bills with by checking the appropriate box.
- 2. Click the Save button when you are finished making changes.

## Making a Single Payment

After creating a payee, you can begin paying your bills online without the hassle of cash or checks. You can effortlessly pay a single bill or schedule payments for the future so you never miss a deadline.



#### In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill Pay.

- **1.** Select a payee.
- 2. Enter an amount.
- **3.** Select the account to take funds from using the drop-down.
- **4.** Use the drop-down to select a delivery method.
- **5.** Select the delivery date using the calendar feature.
- 6. Click the Submit Payment button.

## **Paying Multiple Bills**

You can schedule different payments for multiple payees at the same time, so you can pay all your bills at once!

Payee 🔺	Pay from	Amount	2	Date	
Brian	Direct Pay Checking:	;	\$0.00	Select Date	<b>5</b> -3
NOVEC VA Last Paid: \$26.83 on 6/14/2017	Direct Pay Checking:	•	\$0.00	Select Date	[ <u>1</u> ]
Washington Gas Last Paid: \$105.00 on 5/23/2017	Direct Pay Checking:	•	\$0.00	Select Date	[ <u>31</u> ]
		Total for 0	payments: <b>\$0.</b>	00 Review P	ayments
Review payments					
Payee	Pay from	Ar	mount	Date	e
Brian	Direct Pay Checkin	g: \$0	0.10	9/29/2017	
NOVEC VA	Direct Pay Checkin	g: \$0	0.01	9/29/2017	
Washington Gas	Direct Pay Checkin	g: \$0	0.10	9/29/2017	
	Total for 3 p.	ayments: <b>\$0.21</b>	Edit Paymer	nts Submit P	ayments

In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill Pay.

- 1. Choose the accounts funds will be taken from using the "Pay From" drop-downs.
- 2. Enter amounts for each bill.
- **3.** Select the dates to pay bills using the calendar feature.
- 4. Click the Review Payments button.
- **5.** Review your payment information, and click the **Submit Payments** button when you are finished.

## **Payment Activity**

You can cancel a scheduled payment if it has not cleared your account and is still pending. All pending and processed transactions are listed.



In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill PayPay.

- A. Click the Payment Activity tab.
- **B.** Use the search bar to find transactions within that account.
- **C.** Click the = icon to create a custom view of your transactions.
- **D.** Click the 📄 icon to print the Activity Center page.
- E. Click the ▼ icon next to the Deliver On, Status, Payee, Pay from or Amount columns to sort transactions.
- F. Click on a transaction to view more details.

_	
ſ=	
노크	
ν	

**Note**: Scheduled pending payments also appear under the Status column in green.

## **Cancel a Pending Payment**

You can cancel a payment even after you schedule it. This convenient feature gives you the freedom to change the way you make your payments.

Pay Bills	Payment Activity				
Search transactions		<b>-</b> ⊕			
Deliver on 👻	Status 👻	Payee -	Pay from -	Amount 👻	2
1/26/2018	() Scheduled	Certified Lawncare		\$0.10	Actions -
1/19/2018	× Canceled	Certified Lawncare		\$0.10	

In the Transactions tab, click Quick Bill Pay.

- 1. Click the **Payment Activity** tab.
- Click the "Actions" drop-down and select "Cancel" to cancel a pending payment.

## **Full Bill Pay**

### **Payments Overview**

Bill Pay with SSB allows you to stay on top of your monthly finances. Having your bills linked to your bank account enables you to electronically write checks and send payments all in one place.

When you click the **Full Bill Pay** tab, you are asked to choose an account to use within Bill Pay and to accept the terms and conditions.

- <b>Ameren</b> 4040	AT&T Mobil 4818	Volkswagen 2940	Gre		Create spending report View: <u>12 months</u> •	Prin \$ Amour
					Send On↑ Paid To	Status
Pay to:	Enter a person or business to p	pay	Send on:	MM/DD/YY		
Pay from:		\$				
Category:		<b>*</b>	Amount:	\$		
			Cancel	Make payment		
			Cancel	Make payment		

- **A.** Toggle between making multiple payments and single payments.
- **B.** You can sort your payees by due in, name or last scheduled.
- **C.** The search bar can help you locate payees.
- **D.** You can view all of your payees on the left side of the screen.
- E. Your pending transactions display in the right sidebar under "Activity."
- F. You can view your transaction history, in the right sidebar under "History."
- **G.** To print a list of your pending payments or history click the "Print" link.

# Full Bill Pay

### **Creating a Payee Overview**

The individual that receives your payments is known as a payee. Our bill pay system lets you pay just about any company, person loan or account. Before you can begin making payments, you need to decide on what type of payee to create and how they receive funds.

- **Company**: Electronically pay a company such as your mobile phone provider, utility company or even your dentist.
- **Person**: There are multiple ways you can pay a person.
  - **a. Person via direct deposit**: Send money directly to someone's account using their routing and account numbers.
  - **b. Person via check**: Request a check to be sent to a payee. We print it and drop it in the mail for you.
- **Pay a loan, credit card or account**: Your payment is applied directly to your loan, credit card or account electronically.

# Full Bill Pay

## **Creating a Payee**

The information printed on your bill is all you need to set up a payee. When creating a payee, there are two types you can add: known and unknown.

**Known**: You have the option to sign up for e-bills if the payee is preloaded in our database. For more information on e-bills, visit page 81.

**Unknown**: If you have a payee who is not in our system, you can add their contact information and send them a payment. You may not be able to sign up for e-bills.



In the Transactions tab, click Full Bill Pay.

- 1. Click the "Pay someone new" link.
- 2. Enter the name of a person or business, and click the Add button.
|                     | need is the account number that appears or | /our            |                     |    |
|---------------------|--|-----------------|---------------------|----|
| Volkswagen Credit t | bill.                                      | Name:           | John Doe            |    |
| Name:               | Volkswagen Credit                          | Nickname:       | John Doe            | )- |
| Nickname:           | Volkswagen Credit                          | Account number: | If applicable       | )- |
| Account number:     |  |                 | Hide account number | 5  |
|                     | Hide account number                        | Address line 1: |                     |    |
| Category:           | Auto                                       | Address line 2: | Optional            |    |
|                     | _  | Zip:            | 0                   |    |
|                     | Cancel                                     | Confirm City:   |                     |    |
|                     |  | 5 State:        | <b>•</b>            |    |
|                     |  | Phone:          | Optional            | J  |
|                     |  | Category:       | None \$             |    |
|                     |  |                 |                     | _  |
|                     |  |                 | Cancel              | Co |

- **3.** (Known Payee Only) Enter the payee's information.
  - **a.** Enter a nickname.
  - **b.** Enter their account number.
  - **c.** Select a category using the drop-down.
- **4.** (Unknown Payee Only) Enter the payee's information.
  - **a.** Enter a nickname.
  - **b.** Enter their account number.
  - **c.** Enter their address.
  - **d.** Select a category using the drop-down.
- 5. Click the **Confirm** button when you are finished.

### **Editing a Payee**

Bill Pay lets you manage to your existing payees if their contact information or account number changes. You can also make changes to their phone number, category or nickname all from the same page.

	Organize by: Due in 🗸
	Options -
	Ameren,4040
	Pay
	Set up auto-pay
Pay	to: Add reminder
Pay	fron View payment history
Cat	egor Setup ebill
Cal	1 Modify Delete Hide
Modify Biller De	Ameren
Nickname:	Ameren
Account number:	
	Verified account number
Address line 1:	On file  On file On fi
Phone:	Optional
Category:	Utilities 🔶 - 🔆 - 👻
	Cancel Confirm - 3

In the Transactions tab, click Full Bill Pay and then Single Pay.

- 1. Select a payee to edit and select **Modify** from the "Options" drop-down.
- **2.** Make the necessary changes to the payee.
- 3. Click the **Confirm** button when you are finished making changes.

74

Full Bill Pay: Editing a Payee

#### Deactivating or Deleting a Payee

If you no longer need a payee, you can delete them from your bill pay. Deleting a payee does not erase data from any existing payments.



- 1. Select a payee to delete and select **Delete** from the "Options" drop-down.
- 2. Click the **Delete** button to confirm.

### Scheduling a Single Payment

It is easy to pay your bills once you set up payees. You will see all of the payees you have established so far. To pay a bill, simply find your payee and fill out the payment information.

Pay someor	ie new				
	Organize by: [	Due in 🗸 View: <u>All</u> 🗸 Find	d a biller		
- Ameren 4040	AT&T Mobil 4818	Volkswagen Cre			
					 7
Pay to:	Ameren,4040		Send on:	03/06/19	4
Pay from:	XXXX00-2,7000, \$464.19	\$	Deliver by:	03/08/19 (Electronic)	
Category	Litilities		Amount:	¢	- 5
			Panoune.	•	T P
	Add a note				
			Cancel	Make payment	-(7)
	Ameren 4040 Pay to:	Ameren 4040 Pay to: Ameren,4040 Pay from: XXXX00-2,7000, \$464.19 Category: Utilities	Organize by: Due in View: All Find         Ameren        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Pay to:         Ameren,4040         Pay from:         XXXX00-2,7000, \$464.19         Category:         Utilities	Organize by: Due in View: All Find a biller         Ameren        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Image: AT&T Mobil        4040         Pay to:         Ameren,4040         Pay from:         XXXX00-2,7000, \$464.19         Category:         Utilities         G         Image: Add a note	Organize by: Due in view: All view:

#### In the Transactions tab, click Full Bill Pay.

- 1. Click the Single Pay tab.
- **2.** Click on the payee you wish to pay.
- **3.** The "Pay From" account will already be selected.
- 4. Enter the Send On date using the calendar feature.
- 5. Enter the payment amount.
- 6. Add a note for your payment.
- 7. Click the **Make Payment** button when you are finished.



**Note**: If you are making a payment requiring a coupon or piece of paper to go with your payment, we strongly suggest you manually write a paper check and mail it with the coupon. Although rare, court-ordered payments and other government payments may require a coupon for timely processing.

### Scheduling Multiple Payments

To save time, you can also pay multiple bills at once.

• Pay someone new			1	MULTI PAY O	<b>&gt;</b>
	۷	ïew: <u>All</u> <mark>→ Find</mark>	a biller	2	2
<u>Pay To</u>	<u>Coming Due</u> ↓	<u>Last</u> Scheduled	\$ Amount	Send On	
Ameren ▼ 4040	<b>15</b> days 0 0 01/30/19			01/15/19 Deliver by: 01/17	
AT&T Mobility - 4818		2		01/15/19 Deliver by: 01/17	E
Volkswagen Credit - 2940		l		01/15/19	
		Total: Pay from: XXX	X00-2,7000,	\$435.08	
		C	lear	firm all payments	)-

- 1. Click the Multi Pay tab.
- **2.** Enter the payment amount for each bill you wish to pay.
- **3.** Enter the Send On date using the calendar feature.
- 4. Click the **Confirm all payments** button when you are finished.

#### Setting Up Auto-Pay

Our Autopay feature keeps you ahead of your payments by paying your bills on time, every time. Setting up a recurring payment takes only a few moments and saves you time by not having to re-enter a payment each time it is due.

		Orç	ganize by: <u>Du</u>	e in 🗸
Ameren 4040	Options -	AT&T M 4818	lobil	æ`
	Ameren,	.4040		
	Pay			
1 Pesy=10:	Set up auto	o-pay		_
r uy to.	Add remind	ler		
Pay fron	View payme	ent history		
	Setup ebill			
Categor	Modify	Delete	Hide	
			and an address	

- 1. Select a payee to edit and select **Set up auto-pay** from the "Options" drop-down.
- **2.** The "Pay From" account will already be selected.
- **3.** Enter the payment amount.
- **4.** Select a frequency using the drop-down.
- **5.** Enter the start date using the calendar feature.
- 6. Choose how long to continue payments.
- 7. Click the Save auto-pay options button when you are finished.

### **Editing a Payment**

You can edit your automatic payments even after you schedule them, giving you the freedom to change the way you make your payments.



- 1. Click on the payment you wish to edit in the "Activity" section.
- 2. Click the Modify payment button.
- **3.** Make the needed changes to the payment.
- 4. Click the **Modify** button when you are finished making changes.

#### **Deleting a Payment**

If you need to cancel a pending automatic payment for any reason, you can do so. Deleting a payment is permanent and cannot be undone.

	Acti	ivity	History	More	Payment Details			<b>⊕ ⊗</b>
	Foreca	L ast your ba	lance	Print	Ameren,4040			E
					Amount:	\$20.00		Note
					Paid from:	XXXX00-2,	7000	
	Send				Category:	Utilities		
	<u>On</u> ↑	Paid To		<u>\$ Amount</u>	Send on:	01/24/19	(Deliver by: 01/28/19)	
1	01/24	Ameren		20.00	Status:	Scheduled	0	
		4040			Confirmation number:	UBUCZ1DI		
					Delivery type:	Electronic		
					Auto-pay: 2	No		
					Ca	ncel paymen	Modify payment	Close
			Preview: 0	Cancel Pay	ment		8	
			Are you su on 01/24/1		o cancel this payment to A	meren,40	40 for \$20.00	
					Don't cancel payme	ent	ncel payment	

- 1. Click on the payment you wish to delete in the "Activity" section.
- 2. Click the Cancel payment button.
- 3. Click the Cancel payment button.

## Setting Up eBills

Ebills offer the convenience of receiving your bills within Bill Pay so you never miss a bill! Only billers that are preset in the system have the potential to be set up as eBills.

	AT&T M 4818	rganize by: <u>Name</u> Iobil	Mallia	agen Cre	a billor	
		Options -				
Oue in 29 days		Pay	ty,481	8		
Pay to:	AT&T Mobility,48	Set up auto-p			end on:	01/15/19
Pay from:	xxxx00-2 7000		t history		liver by:	01/17/19 (Electronic)
Category:	Househol	Setup ebill Modify	Delete	Hide	Amount:	\$
AT&T Mobility,	4818					
	k your AT&T Mobility	account to		Bill Pav		
	k your AT&T Mobility	account to		Bill Pay.	Nee	d your login info?
Securely lini	k your AT&T Mobility	account to		Bill Pay.	Nee	<u>d your login info?</u>
Securely line		e account to		Bill Pay.	Nee	<u>d your login info?</u>
Securely line User ID Password	rd	e account to		Bill Pay.	Nee	<u>d your login info?</u>

In the Transactions tab, click Full Bill Pay and then Single Pay.

- 1. Select a payee to edit and select **Setup ebill** from the "Options" drop-down.
- 2. Enter your user ID, password, security passcode (optional) and bill frequency.
- 3. Click the Securely link accounts button when you are finished.

=

**Note**: When your e-bill is available, it shows up in green by the payee's name or you receive an email reminder. You can then pay your bill by sending a one-time payment or an automatic payment.



Canceling eBills



- 1. Select a payee to edit and select **Cancel eBill** from the "Options" drop-down.
- 2. Click the Yes button to confirm.

### **Setting Up Reminders**

When a bill is due, Bill Pay can send you reminders to ensure all of your bills get paid on time. After setting up a reminder, you receive an email to notify you when a bill is due, so you never forget a payment.

		Or	ganize by: D	ue in 🗸	🔞 Add Reminder		۲
- <b>Ameren</b> 4040	Options - Ameren,	AT&T I 4818	lobil	æ)	Ameren,4040 Reminders are not pay action!	ments. They simply remind you that it is time to take	
	Pay				How often?	Monthly \$	
	Set up auto	o-pay			Next payment date:	MM/DD/YY	
Pay fron	Add remine View paym				Send email to me:	10 ¢ calendar days before next payment date	
Categor	Setup ebill				Estimated amount:	\$ Optional	Л
outegor	Modify	Delete	Hide			(You can change this amount before you pay.)	
						Cancel Add reminde	

- 1. Select a payee to edit and select **Add reminder** from the "Options" drop-down.
- **2.** Enter the details for your reminder including the frequency, next payment date, when you would like an email notification and the estimated amount.
- 3. Click the Add reminder button when you are finished.

### **Editing a Reminder**

You can make changes to your existing reminders at any time. If you need to turn a reminder off, you can do so from the same page.

Pay someone new		PAY O O
	Organize by: <u>Due in</u> - Viev	v: All 🗸 Find a biller 🔎 🕐
Ameren 4040 Options V	AT&T Mobil 48182940	wagen Cre
Uue in 16 days		
() Reminder	X Modify or D	Delete Reminder
Next Due date How Often? 01/30/19 Twice a month	Ameren,4040	
Upgrade to eBill	How often?	Twice a month \$
Modify or Delete reminder	Next payment da	ate: 01/30/19
Skip reminder	Send email to me	e: 10 • calendar days before next payment date
	Estimated amou	Email will arrive on: 01/20/19 nt: \$ 0.00 (You can change this amount before you pay.)
		Delete reminder Cancel Modify reminder

- 1. Click on the reminder you would like to edit.
- 2. Select "Modify or Delete reminder" from the drop-down.
- **3.** Make the necessary edits.
- 4. Click the Modify reminder button when you are finished making changes.

#### Alerts

Bill Pay sends multiple alert emails to inform you about payments and bills. You can edit which alerts you receive by turning a specific email notification on or off.

Reports     Balance Worksheet	Email address: Email format: HTML \$	
Alert Preferences	Security Important Bill Pay cancellation information	Email
Add/Modify Categories	Biller added	□ 2
Funding Accounts	Biller edited	
Customer Support	Payment	
P Help	Electronic funds transfer unsuccessful	$\checkmark$
•	Electronic funds transfer unsuccessful	$\checkmark$
	Payment successful	

- 1. Click on Alert Preferences in the "More" section.
- 2. Check or uncheck the boxes to turn a specific alert on or off.
- 3. Click the Save button when you are finished.

### **Creating a Report**

You can create and run reports to keep track of your payments. These reports can help you keep up with payment statuses and amounts paid all within a time frame you select.



- 1. Click on Reports in the "More" section.
- 2. Click the "Create new report" link.
- 3. Enter a report title.
- 4. Select a time frame using the drop-down.
- 5. Check or uncheck the boxes to turn a specific alert on or off.
- 6. Click the Save button when you are finished.

### **Editing a Report**

You can make changes to your reports to help you get better information about your transactions. Reports can be edited at any time to get you accurate details about your online payments.



- 1. Click on **Reports** in the "More" section.
- 2. Select a report using the drop-down.
- 3. Click the "Modify" link.
- 4. Make the necessary edits.
- 5. Click the Save button when you are finished.

**Deleting a Report** 



- 1. Click on **Reports** in the "More" section.
- 2. Select a report using the drop-down.
- 3. Click the "Modify" link.
- 4. Click the **Delete** button.

### **Editing a Funding Account**

Your current funding accounts can be edited if you need to change the nickname or next check number.



- 1. Click on Funding Accounts in the "More" section.
- 2. Click the Change default funding account button.
- **3.** Make the necessary changes.
- 4. Click the Save Changes button when you are finished.

### **Creating a Category**

Bill Pay allows you to sort your payees into categories for easy access. If you have multiple bills for your car, home or credit cards, creating a category helps you stay organized and keeps you from missing payments.

Activ	vity History	More	Add/Modify Categories				
G	Reports		Name			De	elete
i	Balance Worksheet		Auto		-	•	
	Alert Preferences		Credit Card		-	•	0
	Add/Modify Categories		Household		<b>n</b>	•	
\$	Funding Accounts		Miscellaneous		$\sum_{i=1}^{n}$	•	0
0	Customer Support		Utilities		-)	•	0
8	Help	3	-		Ē	•	0
		2	Add category				
		2		C	ancel	Save cha	inges
		2		C	ancel	Save cha	inges

- 1. Click on Add/Modify Categories in the "More" section.
- 2. Click the "Add category" link.
- **3.** Enter the category name.
- 4. Click the Save changes button.

### **Changing a Category Name**

Bill Pay makes managing your categories easy, so your bills are always organized.

	Activ	vity	History	More		Add/Modify Categories			8
	e	Report	S			Name			Delete
	i	Balanc	e Worksheet	(	2	Auto	) 🌧	•	
		Alert P	references			Credit Card		•	
1		Add/Me	odify Categorie	s		Household	<b>A</b>	•	
	\$	Fundin	g Accounts			Miscellaneous	Ľ,	•	
	0	Custon	ner Support			Utilities	- <u>`</u>	•	
	?	Help				Add category			
							Cancel	Save	changes
	?	Help				Add category	Cancel	Save	change

- 1. Click on Add/Modify Categories in the "More" section.
- **2.** Change the name of the category.
- 3. Click the Save changes button.

### **Deleting a Category**

When you no longer need to run a certain category, you can easily delete it. This permanently deletes the category from your online bill pay.

	Acti	vity History	More	Add/Modify Categories			۲
	e	Reports		Name			Delete
	I	Balance Worksheet		Auto	*	•	0-2
		Alert Preferences		Credit Card		•	
1		Add/Modify Categories	)	Household	L COL	•	
_	\$	Funding Accounts		Miscellaneous		•	
	0	Customer Support		Utilities	- <u></u>	•	
	?	Help		Add category			
				<u>rido outogory</u>	Cancel	S	ave changes

- 1. Click on Add/Modify Categories in the "More" section.
- 2. Check the box next to the category you wish to delete.
- 3. Click the Save changes button.

### **Contacting Client Services**

If you ever have a question or concern regarding a specific payment within Bill Pay, you can reach out to Client Services without calling or visiting a branch. All you need to do is send a brief message to a member of our customer support team.



In the Transactions tab, click Full Bill Pay.

1. Click on **Customer Support** in the "More" section.

## **Financial Tools**

### Initial Setup

Setting up financial goals for yourself is just as important as establishing a budget. As you move closer to your objectives, our Financial Tools service not only serves as a rearview mirror to see how far you have come, but also as a map, so you can see how much further you need to go. The path toward funding expenses such as a home, vacation or even the tuition for a new career becomes clearer and easier to manage.

The tools within Financial Tools help you calculate your net worth, set budgets, view your spending habits and trends and set up a debt payment plan.

#### Linking an Account

Before you can begin setting up your financial goals, you need to link all your accounts, items you own and debts.

۹ Search f	or your financial institutior	1	
	normal Earth anno Soct		liwest Credit Union administration
Sign in using	your Bank login crede	entials	
	Gorial Bartik 🗄 culturalianisson		
User ID			

Link an account from your Home page.

- 1. Click the Link Account button.
- 2. Locate your financial institution using the list or the search bar.
- 3. Enter your user ID and password for each account.
- 4. Click the **Continue** button to finish linking an account.

#### **Unlinking an Account**

You can unlink an external account if you wish to have it no longer show up on your accounts page or within Financial Tools.

Checking - Checking -		
Details		
Online Display Name Checking -		
Current Account Grou	p	
Linked Accounts	$\sim$	
Account Visibility		
Home		
Financial Tools	••••	
	(!) Warning	
	Warning Are you sure you want to remove this account? All accounts from this institution	
	will be removed, including:	
	Checking -	
	Mortgage - Mortgage -	
	This action cannot be un-done. Includes them back you will need to re-link your accounts. If you wish told an individual account from view, please select <b>No, don't remove</b> below, return to the previous screen, and set Visibility to Hidden.	
	No, don't remove	

In the Settings tab, click Account Preferences.

- **1.** Click on an account to expand it.
- 2. Click the "Remove" link.
- 3. Click the Yes, remove button.

#### **Categorizing Transactions**

In order for our Financial Tools tools to work properly, make sure your transactions are correctly categorized. When all your accounts are linked to Financial Tools, your transactions are automatically categorized. Common categories include gas/auto, entertainment, medical expenses, rent and utilities. If a transaction needs to be reassigned, you can manually edit the category.

Each category has a corresponding icon assigned to it to help quickly identify a transaction's financial category. These icons are displayed next to each transaction in the Account Details page.

Bank Co	ontrol Checking **	\$14.37 \$14.37 Available Balance(s) Current Balance
Last Updated: J	uly 13, 2020 6:24 AM	
Transaction	ns Details	
		Q ∆ \$\$ ∓ :
Q Search tra	ansactions	
Date 🗟	Description -	Amount -
JUN 11 2020	Wire Transfer Transfer	- <b>\$2.00</b> \$14.37
JUN 10 2020	Wire Transfer Transfer	+ \$5.00 \$16.37
1	Categorize × Wre Tansfer S Search categories * Auto & Transport * Bills & Utilities * Shipping * Printing	
	Office Supplies Legal Advertising + Add Sub-Category	5 × Ø

Click an account to view the **Account Details** page.

- **1.** Click a category icon to edit the category.
- **2.** Select a new category.
- **3.** Click the  $\checkmark$  icon to view sub-categories.
- 4. Click the + Add Sub-Category button to add a different sub-category.
- **5.** Enter the sub-category's name and click the  $\checkmark$  button.

96

Financial Tools: Initial Setup

#### **Splitting a Transaction**

Financial Tools offers the ability to split one transaction to represent multiple categories. For example, if a shopping trip needs to be split into multiple categories such as grocery, pharmacy and home supplies, you can review your receipt and split the total charge across multiple categories.



Click an account to view the **Account Details** page.

- 1. Click the icon and click "Split transaction."
- 2. Click the category icon to edit the new category.
- 3. Enter the amount in the text box and click the  $\checkmark$  button.
- 4. Click the + Split transaction button to add additional categories.

## **Financial Tools**

### **Online Banking Home Page**

There are six features within Financial Tools that are accessed through the Home page: spending, budget, trends, cash flow, net worth and debts. These features help you review your finances within Financial Tools.

Net Worth	Budget	Spending	Trends	Debts	Link Account

Different tabs appear on the Home page, which takes you to interactive features to help you manage your finances.

- **Net Worth**: Total your assets and debts and view a line graph to see how funds are allocated.
- **Budget**: Track your monthly finances by adding targets to help you better manage your expenses.
- **Spending**: See your spending habits in a visual pie chart representation.
- **Trends**: Track your habits even further to see how you spend your money over time.
- **Debts**: View all your debts and view payment plans to become debt-free as quickly as possible.

#### **Net Worth Overview**

After your accounts are linked and categorized, the net worth feature offers you a view of your net worth calculated by subtracting your debts from your checking, savings and investment accounts. Your net worth is tracked each month, allowing you to monitor your financial progress.



Click the **Net Worth** tab from the Home page.

- **A.** View your net worth graph in six month (6M), nine month (9M) or one year (1Y) increments.
- **B.** Your current net worth is displayed above the graph.
- **C.** Click the "View Assets and Liabilities" link to view more details about your net worth.
- **D.** Click on a data point to view your net worth during a specific month.
- E. Click the "Filter Accounts" link to filter your net worth by account.

A budget helps you manage your money based on how much you earn and spend. Our budget tool eliminates guess work and helps you make an accurate budget quickly and efficiently. Before creating a budget, make sure your transactions are categorized properly.



Click the **Budget** tab from the Home page.

- **A.** Your budget appears as bubbles to track your progress. A green bubble indicates you are within budget, yellow is near budget and red is over budget. The size of the bubble indicates the size of the budget.
- **B.** Click the 📃 button to view your budget as a list.
- **C.** Click the **< >** buttons to view another month's budget.
- **D.** The bar chart compares your income to your spending.
- **E.** Click the "Filter Accounts" link to filter your budgets by account.

#### **Auto-generated Budgets**

Automatically generate budgets based upon your recent transactions.



Click the **Budget** tab from the Home page.

1. Click the Auto-generate Budgets button.

#### **Budgets From Scratch**

Create custom budgets.

	\$0 - \$0 = \$0 Projected Income - Budgeted = Remaining	
$( ) \circ$	Auto & Transport so	(+)
Take control of your money Connect all your accounts to create monthly budgets.	Bills & Utilities so	+ -2
Start From Scratch Auto-generate Budgets	Business Services so	+
ſ	Add Auto & Transport Budget?	
	Unbudgeted Projected Income: \$0	
3	Auto & Transport Budget Amount	
	Cancel Save 4	

Click the **Budget** tab from the Home page.

- 1. Click the Start From Scratch button.
- **2.** Click the + icon to create a budget.
- **3.** Enter a budget amount.
- 4. Click the Save button.

#### **Editing or Deleting a Budget**

After clicking the Auto-Generate button, a budget based on your spending habits is calculated. The automated budget may not always fit your needs, but you have the ability to make changes to your budget amounts and add sub-categories, if necessary.



Click the **Budget** tab from the Home page.

- 1. Click a bubble to edit your budget amount or to add a sub-category.
- 2. Edit a budget amount.
  - a. Click the Edit Budget button.
  - **b.** Enter the budget amount and click the **Save** button.
  - **c.** Click the Delete Budget button to remove a budget.
- **3.** Add a sub-category.
  - a. Click the "Add New Sub-Budget" link.
  - **b.** Select a sub-category from the list.
  - c. Click the "+ Add a Sub-category" link
  - **d.** Enter the sub-category name and click the "Add" link.

102

#### **Managing Budgets**

You can also add new budgets, if needed.

	Budget	
Spending Budget	Trends Cash Flow Net Worth Debts	Link Account
√ Filter Accounts	< February 2020	Add New Budget
	\$0 - \$0 = \$0 Projected income - Budgeted = Remaining	
	Auto & Transport so	+
	Bills & Utilities \$0	+ -2
	Business Services \$0	+
	Add Auto & Transport Budget? Unbudgeted Projected Income: \$0 Auto & Transport Budget Amount 3 Cancel Save 4	

Click the **Budget** tab from the Home page.

- **1.** Click the "+ Add New Budget" link to edit or add a budget.
- **2.** Click the + icon to create a budget.
- **3.** Enter a budget amount.
- 4. Click the **Save** button.

#### **Spending Overview**

The spending tool helps you stay on top of your expenses and ensures transactions are properly organized. Your spending habits are organized in a pie chart for you to easily see your smallest and largest expenses. Seeing your expenses broken down allows you to choose where you can cut back, so funds can be used elsewhere.



Click the **Spending** tab from the Home page.

- **A.** Click the "Filter Accounts" link to filter your spending by account.
- **B.** Use the calendar drop-down to view your spending habits during a specific month.
- **c.** Click the **< >** buttons to view your spending habits during a specific week.
- **D.** Click a section of the pie chart to view spending in a specific category.
- **E.** Total amount spent in a category is located in the center of the chart.
- **F.** Click the "Select to View Transactions" link to view a list of transactions in a specific category.
- **G.** Click the **Spending** or **Income** tab to view all your spending habits or income as a list.

#### **Spending: Recategorizing a Transaction**

With the spending tool, you can easily identify transactions that need recategorizing. From there, you can select the transaction and place it in the correct category.

	~		Transactions		
	~ DATE	PAYEE	CATEGORY	ACCOUNT	AMOUNT
	• Jun 25, 2018	From Checking To Savings	Fees & Charges	UB Checking	\$1.00
Business Services	• Jun 25, 2018	From Checking To Nrta Testi	Life Insurance	UB Checking	3
\$6.38 Select to View Transactions	÷		transaction Details	P Flag	
1	From Ch UB Check	hecking To Savings	-4	Exclude	\$1.00
	Payee		ng To Savings		
	Date	Jun 25, 2018			
	Category	Auto & Trans	port		
	Tags	+			

Click the **Spending** tab from the Home page.

- **1.** Click the "Select to View Transactions" link to view a list of transactions in a specific category.
- **2.** Click a transaction to view more details.
- **3.** Click the ••• icon to flag, exclude or split a transaction.
- **4.** Click a category to recategorize a transaction from the list or from a transaction details page.

← Select A Catego	ory
Ø Search for a category	
Auto & Transport	6a-(=)
Bills & Utilities	$(\pm)$
Business Services	+
Education	+

Auto Insurance – 6b	
Auto Payment	
Gas	
Parking	
Public Transportation	
Service & Parts	
+ Add a Subcategory - 60	

- 5. Select a new category from the list.
- 6. Add a sub-category.
  - **a.** Select the **+** icon to choose a sub-category.
  - **b.** Select a sub-category from the provided list.
  - **c.** Click the "+ Add a Sub-category" link to make a new sub-category.
  - **d.** Enter the sub-category name and click the "Add" link.

#### **Trends Overview**

The trends tool gives you a chart of your spending habits in each category compared to your income. With the help of trends, you can easily identify what funds go toward your financial goals.



Click the **Trends** tab from the Home page.

- **A.** View your spending trends in three month (3M), six month (6M), nine month (9M) or one year (1Y) increments.
- **B.** Click the *M* = buttons to view your trends in a line chart or a list.
- **C.** The single line is your income line.
- **D.** The other items are your spending habits organized into categories.
- E. Hover over a data point to see your spending during that month.
- **F.** Hover over a category to see your spending from the past few months.
- **G.** Click on a category to view a single chart.
- **H.** The white space indicates funds left over at the end of each month.

#### **Debts Overview**

The debts tool helps you quickly pay down debt, ultimately saving you money spent on interest without making big budget cuts or sacrifices. When your debts are imported into our Financial Tools feature, make sure the annual percentage rate (APR) and minimum payment are accurate.

	Debts: Fastest Pay	yoff First	Total Monthly I	Paydown		
	Total Minimum Monthly	/ Payments: \$2,263.00	\$2,263.0	00	Extra Payme	nt Toward Debt: \$
			•		-	
	Dec 2			e by May 2026	0	
	\$167	,240.30	paymen		inimum	
				e acceleration		ß
				ars and 3 months		
	Priority	Account 2025	2030 Balance	APR	2035 Last Payment	t Amount Due
	0	Credit Card	\$2,817.22	14.99%	5.1.2018	\$120.00
		cicuit curu	\$2,017.22	14.00%	0.112.010	\$120.00
	(@	Primary Credit Card	\$1,798.65	7.99%	6.1.2018	\$65.00
4/16 Mance	2778 KD18 V	Debt E	\$1,798.65	SNOWBALLING		\$22,33145 and a form \$22,33145 and a form 13 Years And Month's form Veter My Cars
<sup>tance</sup> 2,817.2	2778 KD18 V	Debt E	ilminated: May 2018	SNOWBALLING Paying off your de	bt In the fastest way po	Proceedings on and see \$22,331.45 Juny of 13 Years And 3 Month's family working the set of the set
	2 2	Debt E	ilminated: May 2018	SNOWBALLING Proving off your do Chan an our sheated	bit in the fastest way po	estible.
lance 2,817.2 ext Peyment	2 2	Debt E	ilminated: May 2018	SNOWBALLING Peying off your de fore assess, asy you're fored as you smallet Debt 1 Payment	b thin the fisstest way pool to be used to b	A constraints of the second seco
tance 2,817.2 at Payment 120.00	7/18 KO/16 P	Debt E	ilminated: May 2018	SNOWBALLING Proving off your do Chan an our sheated	thin the fastest way po built in the fastest way po built	asticie, rgf: To tent, syste rgf: To tent, syste

Click the **Debts** tab from the Home page.

- **A.** Select a debt payoff option using the "Debts" drop-down.
- **B.** The dotted line indicates how long it will take to pay off your debts using the payoff option you selected.
- **C.** The chart illustrates an accelerated payoff timeline using the snowball method.
- **D.** Your debts are listed below the chart.
- E. Click a debt to edit your APR interest and minimum payment.
- **F.** Click the 🕄 icon to view more details about the snowball method.
- **G.** Click the "Total Monthly Paydown" link to make an extra payment toward debt. Enter the amount in the text box.
#### **Stop Payment Request**

#### Single Check

If you're ever worried about a pending written check, you can initiate a stop payment request to prevent that check from being processed. Once approved, the stop payment remains in effect for a specific amount of time. If you need the current fee information, please call us during our business hours at (231) 352-9691.

	Stop Payment	
	Request type	
1	Single Check	
	O Multiple Checks	
6	Account	
2-	Select an account	
3	Check number	
4	Check amount (optional)	5
	Payee name (optional)	
6		
-	Note (optional)	
7		
	8 Request stop payment	

In the Services tab, click Stop Payment.

- 1. Select "Single Check."
- 2. Select the appropriate account using the drop-down.
- **3.** Enter the check number.
- **4.** (Optional) Enter the amount.
- **5.** (Optional) Enter the date of the check using the calendar feature.
- **6.** (Optional) Enter the payee.
- 7. (Optional) Enter a note.
- 8. Click the **Request stop payment** button when you are finished.

#### **Multiple Checks**

If you're ever worried about multiple pending written checks, you can initiate a stop payment request to prevent the checks from being processed. Once approved, the stop payment remains in effect for 6 months. If you need the current fee information, please call us during our business hours at (231) 352-9691.

	Stop Payment
	Request type
	Single Check
1	Multiple Checks
	Account
2	
9	Select an account
	Starting check number Endingcheck number
3	
	Starting date (optional) Ending date (optional)
4	
_	Note (optional)
5	
	6 Request stop payment

In the Services tab, click Stop Payment.

- 1. Select "Multiple Checks."
- **2.** Select the appropriate account.
- **3.** Enter the starting and ending check number.
- **4.** (Optional) Enter the starting and ending date of the checks using the calendar.
- 5. (Optional) Enter a note.
- 6. Click the **Request stop payment** button when you are finished.



**Note**: You can view the approval status of a stop payment in the Activity Center.

Ę

### **Check Reorder**

If you've previously ordered checks through SSB, you can conveniently reorder checks online at any time by signing in to our trusted vendor's website.

Personal Products Check Enhancements Home Office / Desk Books		Order Checks for your Bus
XIX		
Shop Designs Available to You!	Routing Number	
Enter routing number     Enter account number	Account Number	INTERNATIONAL IN
We'll display your design and pricing options!		00020178902 121452384 0101
	Your Zip Code	
IAMES C. MORRISON 101		
DATE PARTY BARRIER		
deluxe manage	Sign In to See Pricing	Or, browse without

In the Transactions tab, click on Check Reorder.

**1.** Complete your order on our vendor's website.

**Note**: If you notice that you are missing checks, please contact us right away, so that we can take precautions to safeguard against identity theft and fraud.

#### Statements

The Statements feature is a great virtual filing system for your bank statements, saving you paper. By storing your statements electronically, your account information is always readily available when you need it.

PDF Verification
The E-Sign Act requires us to verify that you are able to view PDFs. Please help us by following these two steps:
Press "Get Code"—you will see a PDF with a code for you to copy and paste.       Paste the code exactly as it appears into this field and click Verify. (Can't see a PDF?)         Get Code       1       Pvool       Verify
Statements
3-Account
4 Date
5 Document Type
6 Download document View and print document

In the Transactions tab, click Statements.

- 1. Click the **Get Code** button to verify that you can view a PDF.
- **2.** A PDF with a code appears. Type the code into the verification field and click the **Verify** button.
- 3. Choose an account to work with using the "Account" drop-down.
- **4.** Choose a date for the statement using the "Date" drop-down.
- 5. Use the "Document Type" drop-down to select a file format.
- 6. Click the Download document button to download the statement.
- 7. Click the View and print document button to view and print the statement.

Services: Check Reorder

#### Mobile Deposit Enrollment

Online Banking with SSB gives you the tools to tackle your finances how you want, whether from in-branch, desktop computer, tablet or mobile device. Enroll in Mobile Remote Deposit Capture (RDC) to check deposits from anywhere at anytime from nearly any device.



#### In the Transactions tab, select Mobile Deposit Enrollment

- 1. Click the "Terms and Conditions" link and review the document.
- 2. Click the check box indicating your acceptance of the terms.
- 3. Click the Accept button when you are finished.

Ē	1
ע	,

**Note**: Once the bank reviews your information, you will receive a secure message indicating that the mobile banking service is turned on. You can then log in to the app on your smart phone and find the **Deposit Check** tab.

### Mobile Deposits

With a snap of a photo, you can deposit checks into your Online Banking account.

Deposit Check Deposit Check History Deposit Check Deposit Check Deposit Check Deposit Check Deposit Account	:k Histor
Deposit Account Deposit Account	
Amount	>
\$0.00 Amount	
	50.00
Deposits allowed per day: 110 Daily deposit limit:	
Deposits allowed per day:	
Front of check Back of check	
Submit Deposit	
Submit Deposit	
4	

**Note**: This feature is only available when using our mobile app on your device.

Log in to our SSB Mobile Banking app. In the **Services** tab, select **Deposit Check**.

- 1. Choose the account you would like the check deposited to.
- **2.** Input the dollar amount of the check.
- **3.** Sign the back of the check and write "For Mobile Deposit Only," then tap the **Front of check** and **Back of check** buttons to take an image of the front and back of the check.
- **4.** Verify that all four corners of the check are visible and all elements are legible, then tap the **Submit Deposit** button when finished.

### Quick Balance

Quick Balance allows you to check your account balances for up to five accounts from the login page of the SSB mobile app without needing to log in. It is recommended that you secure your device with a passcode. You can disable this feature at any time.



#### To Enable Quick Balance

Log in to the SSB App. In the **Settings** tab, tap **Quick Balance**.

**1.** Slide the "Quick Balance" toggle to On.

ļ

**Note**: If you have enabled Touch/Face ID, you will not be able to use Quick Balance because these convenient login methods occur immediately when the app is launched. To use quick balance, you must turn these features off.



#### **To Use Quick Balance**

Open the SSB App.

Ē

1. Tap "Your Accounts" to view your account balances.

**Note**: To change which accounts are viewable when using Quick Balance, you must log into the mobile app, and re-order your accounts with in the **Home** page, then log off the app and tap **Quick Balance** again.

**Note**: Quick Balance supports only one user ID per device; you may have a user ID and Quick Balance saved to more than one device. If you change Quick Balance settings on one device, setting changes will apply across all devices. For your security, we recommend you lock your phone between uses.

#### Account Preferences

The Home page and your accounts should appear in a way that is fitting for you. Account names and the order in which they appear on the home page, as well as the order of account groups and account group names, can be changed in Account Preferences to suit your needs.

A	ccount Preferences
Clic	k anywhere on the account row if you would like to add/edit an account nickname, enable SMS/Text banking or view account details. Group and sort ounts as they are displayed on the homepage.
С	Search by account label, name, nickname, number, or product type
	FREE CHECKING ******9333
	Details
	Online Display Name           FREE CHECKING
	Current Account Group Accounts
	Account Visibility Home
	inancial Tools

In the Settings tab, click Account Preferences.

- 1. Select the up or down arrows on the right side to change the order that your accounts appear in.
- 2. Use the **Account Visibility** switch to toggle whether or not your account is visible on the Home page and within Financial Tools.
- **3.** Click the  $\swarrow$  icon to change the nickname of a group or an account. Make your changes and click the checkmark to save it.
- **4.** Click the  $\swarrow$  icon to change the Online Display Name of an account. Make your changes and click the checkmark to save it.
- 5. Use the "Account" drop-down to change the group that account is in.

### Text Enrollment

Text Banking allows you to manage your accounts on the go. Once enrolled, you can check balances, review account history and transfer funds from your Online Banking account using any text-enabled device.



In the Settings tab, click Text Enrollment.

- 1. Toggle the Text Enrollment switch from "Off" to "On."
- 2. Enter your SMS text number.
- 3. Read the terms and conditions, and check the box next to "Agree To Terms."
- 4. Click the **Save** button when you are finished.
- 5. Click the Visit Preferences button to be taken to the Accounts feature.



**Note**: Once you've signed up for Text Banking, you should receive a text confirmation.

CHECKING ACCOUNT - CK XXXX 6	^
Accounts	• ~
Details SMS/Text - 7	
SMS/Text Enrollment 8 9	
SMS/Text Display Name CHE1 CHE1 CHE1 CHE1 CHE1 CHE1 CHE1 CHE1	

- 6. Select an account you want to enroll in text banking.
- 7. Click the SMS/Text tab.
- 8. Toggle the SMS/Text Enrollment switch from "Off" to "On."
- **9.** (Optional) Click the  $\swarrow$  icon to change the SMS/Text Display Name. Make your changes and click the check mark to save it.

Commands for Text Banking			
Text Command Options to	38637	for the Following Information:	
BAL or BAL <account nickname=""></account>	Reques	t account balance	
HIST <account nickname=""></account>	Reques	t account history	
XFER <from account="" nickname=""></from>	Transfer funds between accounts		
<to account="" nickname=""> <amount></amount></to>			
LIST	Receive	a list of keywords	
HELP		a list of contact points for information Banking	
STOP	· · ·	text messages to the mobile device (for nking and SMS alerts/notifications)	
START	Enable	message send/receive for Text Banking	

#### **Statement Delivery**

You can change how you like to receive your monthly statements for your primary account. Paper statements are physically delivered to you in the mail, while E-Statements are sent in PDFs through email.

Statement Delivery			
Account ^	Delivery Type	Address	
Internal	E-Statement	ilmuge in et Bharghlann, sen	$\vdash \oslash$
Personal Savings	E-Statement	ianugeriter@forightuni.com	CP.
View E-Statement Delivery Agreement	Delive	ery Preferences	
	Account BUSINESS Delivery Ty	VALUE CHECKING *****1306	
	E-Statem	ent	$\sim$
	Email Add	ress	
		9	
	Alternate	Email Address (Optional)	
		4	
		5 Sav	re

In the Settings tab, click Statement Delivery.

- 1. Edit or add a delivery destination by clicking the  $\swarrow$  icon at the end of the account line.
- 2. Use the drop-down to choose your "Delivery Type."
- 3. Add or change your email address.
- 4. (Optional) Add an alternate email address.
- 5. Click the Save button when you are finished.

### Accessibility

We want Online Banking to be useful and accessible to everyone. High contrast mode lightens the menu on the left side of the screen for better visibility.



In the Settings tab, click Accessibility.

1. Check the box next to "Enable high contrast mode."

